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\v The Union Block in Oskaloosa is a composite unit of four 
rectangular storerooms unified by common materials and design. 
Each section is two stories in height and has a full basement. 
The buildings face north toward the courthouse square, and the 
whole business block measures 100 feet long and 80 feet deep 
with a height of 35 feet.

The exterior walls are .constructed of red brick laid in 
running bond and trimmed around the windows and doors with rough 
hewn limestone. The red brick facade rises from a massive stone 
base which marks the basement area. The horizontal bands of 
rough hewn stone occurring at the sill and head lines of the 
second floor windows tie them together visually.-^

\The roof is flat and concealed behind a decorative parapet 
wall. A stone and metal cornice at the parapet ia^ornamentally 
treated with wide projecting brackets and corbels.>

The front entrance to the former bank building is angled 
across the corner and flanked by two short red granite columns 
resting on high limestone bases. Springing from the column 
capitals is a massive limestone arch. Further emphasis is added 
to the main entrance by a heightened parapet wall with the word 
"BANK" in a central position. Also, extensive brick corbeling 
occurs above the second floor window arch, and the corbeling is 
flanked by two brick pilasters situated directly over the two 
granite cplumns. A secondary entrance located on the east wall 
also has an'extended parapet1 this one with the date "1892."

The arched transom"above the main entrance is colored glass. 
The windows on both the first and second floors occur in tall 
arched openings with rough hewn limestone blocks forming the 
arches. The window sills are single stone blocks. The arches 
above the second floor windows are engaged in groups of three 
and four. A pediment between the two western storerooms has 
the name "UNION BLOCK" and the date "1892." Below the pediment 
on the first floor is an exterior opening providing access to the 
second floor rooms.

The exterior of the former bank has undergone only minor 
changes, the most obvious being the recent placing of a sign by 
the current occupant, a restaurant. From all indications the 
next storeroom to the west, now a department store, still has 
the original exterior. The remaining two storerooms originally 
had the same appearance as the department store. But the front 
of the third was bricked up within the last year or two and 
door and window openings installed. The fourth facade has 
changed by the installation of a theater marquee and other 
ations. In no instance have the second floor facades been 
changed.
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The Union Block, located at the southeast corner of the 
square in Oskaloosa, was erected in 189Z fojs?- several local 
businessmen. Designed by architect H. M. Hadley of Topeka, 
the two- story brick and stone block was planned to provide 
four business fronts on the first floor and space for offices 4-^ 
on the second. The corner portion, or the east end of the 
block, was built for the State Bank of Oskalopsa, Charles W. 
Huddleston, cashier; his father, William H.^^Huddleston, built 
the next portion west for a store and office building; next 
was a store and office building for A. G. Smith, M. D. ;

west section was a store and office building for 
B. McClellan. Estimated cost for the bank building was 

$6,500 and for each of the three remaining segments $4,000, 
making the estimated cost for the Union Block $18,500.

Bids for the stone work on the block _were received by the 
State Bank's cashier, Charles Huddleston, ir^March, 18'92, and 
in April it was announced that G. W. Thompson, a contractor 
who had recently moved to Oskaloosa from Kansas City, had 
secured the contract. Excavations for the Union Block began 
around the first of June and masons were soon laying the stone 
foundations. The work progressed rapidly and without major 
difficulties until September when the brick contractors walked 
off the job, claiming they were losing money. Other brick­ 
layers were soon engaged and the walls were completed. On 
November 12, 1892, the Oskaloosa Independent reported that 
"the roof is on Union Block and all the windows in except the 
front plates and inside work is going ahead. . ."

Originally the State Bank officers had planned to move 
into their new quarters by the Christinas holidays, but the move 
was delayed a number of times because the interior wasn't 
finished or the fixtures hadn't arrived. Apparently the bank 
was finally doincj^business at the Union Block location by 
early May, 189 2f; and it remained there until 1960 when a new 
facility was contructed. At the present time a restaurant ̂  
occupies the former bank space. Over the years various businesses 
have occupied the other store rooms in the Union Block, but 
currently from east to west are a department store, a pool 
hall and a movie theater. Second floor offices have been 
rented by doctors, lawyers, abstracters, county officers, and
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Oskaloosa Independent, January 30, February 6, 20, March 19, 26, April 9, 
23, 30, June 4, 11, September 3, 10, 17, November 12, December 17, 
31, 1892; March 4, 11, 1893; January 20, 1972. 

"75 Years Banking Service by State Bank of Oskaloosa," Winchester Star,
August 3, 1962.
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Owners of property:

Mr. John Hart, Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066 
Mr. Willem Helms, Oskaloosa, Kansas 66066 
Mrs. lone Huddleston, Winchester, Kansas 66097

others through the years. There are now a number of apartments 
on the second floor and other rooms are used for storage.

The Union Block has been a landmark at the southeast corner 
of the courthouse square since its construction, and commercial 
enterprises located in its facilities have offered a variety of 
services to the community. The Union Block is an excellent example 
of Romanesque^^arrchitecture in a Kansas commercial structure.


